
 

 

                         

 

 

HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 

   AGENDA  

  JANUARY 8, 2014   

 8:15 A.M. 

               

  
1. Call to Order by Chairman:         

  

2. MINUTES:  Consider approval of the minutes from the December 18, 2013 

meeting (extended from the December 11, 2013 public hearing):     

ACTION:____________________________________________________________________

  

3. TRAINING SESSION AUDIO CONFERENCE PROGRAM – Conducting the 

Zoning Board of Appeals Hearing (Approximately 60 minutes)  

 

4. OTHER:  

ACTION___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
                Enclosed:  Draft Minutes  
                  Copy of Application & Supporting Documentation 
 
 

 
If you will be unable to attend please contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office at 785- 628-7310.  
Thank you.  Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should 
contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled 
meeting time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any requests for assistance. 



 

 1 

 
DRAFT MINUTES  

HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS  
Continued Meeting  

 COMMISSION CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL  

MINUTES  

DECEMBER 18, 2013 

8:15 A.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:      The Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals met on Wednesday, 

December 18, 2013, a continued meeting from December 11, 2013, at 8:15 a.m. in 

Commission Chambers of City Hall for cases #20-13 and #21-13.  

 

Roll Call: 

Present:          Lou Caplan 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt  

Jerry Sonntag 

                            

Chairman Lou Caplan declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.                

   

City Staff Present: Jesse Rohr, Superintendent of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement, 

Nicholas Willis, Stormwater/Water Conservation Superintendent, and Linda Bixenman, 

Administrative Secretary of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement. 

                                 

2. MINUTES:  There was a motion by Tom Lippert with a second by Jerry Sonntag to 

approve the minutes from the December 11, 2013 with the following amendments noted 

on page 3 by Tom Lippert:  strike last sentence in first paragraph; 5th paragraph first 

sentence,  Tom Lippert expressed concern; 6th paragraph, correct name to “Larry”;  

paragraph 7 to remove “for the same”.  Jesse Rohr noted a correction on paragraph 6 

should be “3 gallons”. 

 

Vote:  Ayes:                       Lou Caplan 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt  

Jerry Sonntag 

 

 3.      CASE #20-13 and 21-13 Chase Technology LC, Larry Schaffer, Owner – 1112 E 27th St – 

variance request and special use for car wash request    ZONED “C-2”: Jesse Rohr presented 

the above property on the overhead visual.   
 

This is a continued public hearing on the two above cases that were tabled from the 

December 11, 2013 meeting to give the board a chance to review the cases in light of the 

new information; specifically as follows: 

 



 

 2 

1. Water Conservation 

2. How it would affect abutting property owner to the west 

3. Traffic Issues along 27th 

4. Safety along the sidewalk on the east side 

5. Screening on the south side 
 

Larry Shaffer thanked the board for their consideration of the appeal.  He is asking for a 22 

foot variance to reduce the building setback on the east front yard property line (General 

Lawton Rd) from the required thirty- five feet to thirteen feet to allow for the construction 

of a “state of the art”, green technology four bay car wash; two automated and two self-

serve and equipment room.  

 

He handed out information to show the difference in water savings from the “Soft Touch” 

(high density foam material equipment) to the “Touchless” (high water pressure 

equipment).  There were two scenarios for each type of equipment; a basic wash and a 

top wash.  Total water consumed for the “Soft Touch” was 44 gallons for a total wash 

versus 75 gallons for the “Touchless”; a 63% savings per wash.  In comparing the water 

savings from his two locations, the new equipment would save 60% of water.  He was not 

able to compile the numbers from water usage from his Great Bend car wash that has the 

new equipment since he had to replace a water line. 

 

Nick Willis recommended that the board require that the car wash comply with the water 

conservation language as recommended by City Staff as follows:  specifically the 

plumbing, landscaping and the equipment to meet section 415 of the IAPMO’s 2012 

Green Plumbing & Mechanical Code Supplement.  It is to meet the efficiency standard 

maximum usage of 40 gallons per wash for in-bay automatic carwashes and the spray 

wands shall use no more than 3 gallons per minute.  The requirements are not to be tied to 

a specific manufacturer.    

 

Tom Lippert asked Jesse Rohr if there were any restrictions with the entrance in close 

proximity to the intersection of 27th Street and General Lawton Road.    He pointed out 

that the drive-thru entrance on the property to the north (Kaiser Liquor) was in line with this 

drive- thru entrance.  Also with a rough measure, the structure would be the same 

distance from the east property line as the proposed request. 

 

Jesse Rohr stated “that is a good point”.  He assumed that because it was a different plat 

is one of the reasons of a lesser setback and also that the structure was built before zoning 

regulations were adopted.    

 

He had reviewed the close proximity of the drive-thru to the intersection with John Braun, 

Assistant Director of Public Works.  Because 27th Street and General Lawton being a non-

controlled intersection, and the way the proposed car wash will be configured, he had no 

concerns of this type of use and location of the entrance.  There would be no benefit in 

moving the entrance further west since it is a narrow lot.   

 

Tom Lippert asked if there were any restrictions associated with the proposed 4 foot 

setback on the west side of the property. Jesse Rohr explained that within a “C-2” General 



 

 3 

Commercial and Service District, there are no setback requirements for the side yard and 

rear yard property lines to abutting properties.  In this case, there are three front yard 

building setback requirements and no restrictions on the west side; although if a structure 

is within 10 feet of the property line, they are required to construct the structure with fire 

resistant materials.  They would meet the fire resistant material requirements since the 

building would be constructed with concrete.     

 

Lou Caplan asked if the area between the east property line and the curb was the city 

easement.  Jesse Rohr answered that it was the city right of way.  Other than the area of 

the sidewalk, the owner is allowed to use the right of way for landscaping or parking. 

 

Lou Caplan asked if there was anyone in the audience for comments. 

 

Mario Gutierrez, neighbor to the west, stated that he believes the car wash would benefit 

the community and the city.    He had no concern for the use or the location.  The only 

thing he asked is that there is room on the east side of his property for parked cars to back 

out of the parking stall.  He and Mr. Shaffer plan to incorporate a way to compliment the 

back (south) of both lots.   One recommendation by Mr. Shaffer was to expand the back 

driveway for another exit for both businesses. 

 

Mr. Gutierrez pointed out that there were so many accidents at 27th and General Lawton 

Road.  Ideally, it would be good to have a light at that intersection. 

 

Tom Lippert asked how to avoid the tendency of a customer to drive across the sidewalk if 

they decided not to wait in line in the drive thru line next to General Lawton Road.   Safety 

is dear to his heart.  He suggested building a curb to keep from jumping the sidewalk or 

another exit for an out.  Jesse Rohr added that landscaping is also a possibility.   

 

Jerry Sonntag asked if there would be any impact of stormwater runoff.   Jesse Rohr stated 

that the trigger for stormwater management is the increase of the impervious surface by 

10,000 sq feet.  He found by figuring the impervious surface that it is unlikely they would be 

affected by stormwater management.    

 

Shane Pruitt asked how it would affect traffic if there was another exit along General 

Lawton.  There may be the confusion if it is an entrance instead of an exit. Jesse Rohr 

recommended it would be best to address with a curb.   

 

Shane Pruitt asked if he had suggestions for screening requirements on the south.  Larry 

Shaffer stated that at his other car wash he has Sky Rocket Junipers to catch the trash and 

use for a noise barrier.  He had reservations about constructing a fence; it would be full of 

graffiti.     Using Google maps, Jesse Rohr showed the trees at the other car wash.    

 

Tom Lippert asked if there was a restriction on the space between the street curb and 

building setback.   Jesse Rohr stated that historically it is landscaped area.   The sidewalk is 

to be free and clear.  Cars cannot overhang the sidewalk.   

 

Lou Caplan entertained a motion. 



 

 4 

 

Case # 20-13 - Variance 

 

Tom Lippert moved, Shane Pruitt seconded the motion in regard to case #20-13 to grant 

the twenty-two foot variance to reduce the east front yard building setback from the 

required thirty-five feet (35’) to thirteen feet (13’) as per the proposed site plan at 1112 E 

27th St to construct a car wash based on the consideration that it meets the five statutory 

requirements subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. To install a privacy fence or sufficient landscaping to the south for the purpose of 

buffering the sound and catching the trash from the lot. 

2. Strong consideration to have a curb between the lot and the sidewalk on the east 

edge of the property. 

 

Vote:  Ayes:                       Lou Caplan 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt 

     

 

Nay:                        Jerry Sonntag 

 

Case # 21-13  (Exception) 

 

Gerald Befort moved, Shane Pruitt seconded the motion in regard to Case #21-13 to 

approve the exception for a special use permit for a car wash at the location of 1112 E 

27th Street. 

 

Tom Lippert asked to incorporate the recommended conditions into the motion. 

 

Gerald Befort moved, Shane Pruitt seconded to restate the motion in regard to Case #21-

13 to approve the exception for a special use permit for a car wash at the location of 

1112 E 27th Street allowed within a “C-2” General and Commercial Service District with a 

special use permit.  It is to be subject to the following Conditions: 

 
 

1.  Plumbing shall be constructed to be able to easily disconnect water used in car 

washing from the potable system and connect it to an alternate water supply.  

Water supplied for domestic uses shall be plumbed separately to allow for 

continued potable water usage. 

2. Landscaping shall be limited to xeriscaping.  Any irrigation water shall be 

metered separately and piping shall be installed to easily switch water source to 

non-potable supplies.  Screening shall be required where the lot abuts the 

residential area to the south. 

3. Efficiency of equipment shall meet section 415.0 of the IAPMO’s 2012 Green 

Plumbing & Mechanical Code Supplement.  The facility shall not use the 

exemption allowed for bus and large commercial vehicle washes.  Any 



 

 5 

subsequent changes to the facility or failure to maintain equipment in proper 

working order causing water usage to exceed allowable amounts under this 

code shall be reason for the immediate revocation of the special use permit. 

 

Section 415.0 reads as follows: 

415.0 Automated Vehicle Wash Facilities. The maximum make-up water use for 

automobile washing shall not exceed 40 gallons (151 L) per vehicle for in-bay automatic 

car washes and 35 gallons (132 L) for conveyor and express type car washes.  Spray 

wands and foamy brushes shall use no more than 3.0 gpm (0.06 L/s). Spot-free reverse 

osmosis discharge (reject) water shall be recycled. Towel ringers shall have a positive shut-

off valve.  Spray nozzles shall be replaced annually. 

 

Vote:  Ayes:                       Lou Caplan 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt 

     

 

Nay:                        Jerry Sonntag 

 

  

Larry Shaffer thanked the board for their consideration of his requests.  

 

The board adjourned at 9:00 a.m.  

 

Submitted by: Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Secretary, 

                         Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  




























































































